WILLIAM J. SCOTT
ATTORNEY GENERAL
STATE OF ILLINOIS

SPRINGFIELD

R

- January 5, 1976.

/\\
FILE NO. $-1627 ' \\
OFFICERS: ya '}ﬁ\; :
Compatibility of \\:>

legislator and
County Board Member

Honorable R3asil G. Greania
State's Attornay
Macon County -
307 County Building
Cecatur, Illinois /6

» board are compatible. Offices are
incompati le if by tute or constitution the same person
lding both offices, or if under the
ccmmon';aw they areiincompatible. There is nb common law
doctrine aéainst one person holding two offices per se.
For the reasons to be discussed beldﬁ. I am of the cpinion
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that the tuo offices are not incompatible and thﬁt one
person may hold both offices.

There is no statute or censtitutional provision
.which prohibits the helding of both offices. Section 1
of “AN ACT to prevernt fraudulent and corrupt préetices. etc.”
(x11. Rev, Stat. 1973, ch. 102, par. 1) only prevents a |
member of the county board from accepting another.office
by appeintment or election of the county board, Section
2(e) of articleTEof the 1llinots Constitution of 1970
only prevents a member of the General Assembly from
receiving “compensation‘as a public officer-qr.émployee
from any other governmental eﬁtity for time during which
he is in attendance as a member of the General Aasembly".
tnder theICOnstitution of 1870 a member of the General
Ageembly wasz prohibited from holding'any 1ucrative office
under this State. (111, Cbnsf; art. IX, sec, 3{1870}.)
A proposal before the Sixth Illinoils constituﬁion§1 Con=-
vention that no memder of the General Assembly should hold
any other elective or appointive public office was rejected.
VI Record of Proceedings 2821 to 2828,

The separation of powers provision in the State
Constitution has sormetimes been interpreted to make certain
offices incompatible. (See §g§§g,v. Sonnemann, 318 Ill. 600.)
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This has never specific&lly been applied by the court to
offices at different levels of government. Such argument
was made in People v. Capuzi, 20 111, 28 486. 1In that
case the Supreme Court held that a deputy corecner, deputy
‘bailiff, deputy clerk and a village president coulé be
members of the General Assembly. The separation of powers
provision did not apply since the Quties of these officers
were ministerial ané also since the qualifications for
members of the Genatal Assexbly were set forth in the
legislative article of the Constitution. 4
Under the common law officers are incompatible

rwhere the duties of either office are such that the holder
of the office cannot in every instance, propéxly and fully,
faithfully perform all duties of the other office!.
(People v. Haas, 145 111, App. 263, 286,) 1t has similarly
been stated in Ahto v. Weaver, 189 A. 2d 27 (N.J. 1963)
where the éouxt quoted 8ir Francis Bacon:

“ix @& + where there is no express [consti-.
tutional or statutory] provision, the true
test is, whether the two offices are incompatible
in their natures, in the rights, duties, or obli-
gaticns connected with or flowing out of them,
QOffices, says Bacon, are incompatible or in-~
consistent, when thev cannot be executed by the
same persony or when they cannot be executed
with care, and ability; or where one is sub-

cerdinate to, or interferes with ancther, Bac.
Abr. Tit. 'Office’' K.'"
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The doctrine has also been summarigzged in 63 hm, Jur. 2d,
Public Officers and Pmployees, sec. 73, in part as follows:

v # &« Incompatibility of offices Aces
not, it has been said, depend upon the incidents
of the offices. TFor instance the courts generally
hold that mere physical inability to perform the
duties of both offices personally dees not
constituts incompatibility. It is to be found
in the character of the offices and their relation
to each other, in the subordination of the one to
the other, and in the nature of the duties and
functions which attach tc them,

Incempatxhility of oftices exists where there
is a conflict in the duties of the offices, so
that the performance of the duties of the one
interferesz with the performance of the duties
of the other., They are generally considered
incompatible where such duties and functions are
inherently inconsistent and repugnant, so that

“because of the contrariety and antagonism which -
would result from the attempt of one person to
discharge faithfully, impartially, and efficiently
the duties of both offices, considerations of
public policy render it improper for an incumbent
to retain both.

* » « There is no incompatibility betwaen
offices in which the duties are sometimes the
same, and the manner of discharging them sub-
stantially the same, Nor are offices incon-
sistent where the duties performed and the
experience gained in the cne would enable the
incumbent the more intolligently and effectually
to do the duties of the other.*®

1 am of the opinion that under the common law these two
offices are not 1ncampatible; The two bodies'will not enterx
into contracts with each other and I know of no instance

where a mamber of a ocounty hoérd could not fully and faith-
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fully perform all of these duties as a member of the
General Assembly. - i

it might be azguéd that a person as a msmbér of
the General Assembly would be supervising himself as a
member of the county board. Of course, as a member of the
General Assembly he will be voting on bills which will
affect his duties and powers as a member of the county
board. Admittedly, it has been decided in the case of
weza v. Auditor General et al., 298 N.W. 368 (Mich. 1941)
that this legislative control amounts to supervision and
thus renders the two offices incompatiblé. I note,
however, there was a dissent in that case based on the
reasoning that a local governmental officer was no more
gubject to the supervisozyApower of the State legislature
than citizens are in general. The case has been speci-
ficaliy rejected by the New Jersey Supreme Court in Reilly
v. Ozzard, 166 A, 2d 360 (M.J. 1960).

whether or not twoe offices are incompétibléAis
a mﬁttbr of public policy. (Rerkins v. Mannings, 122 P.
24 857 (Ariz. 1542).) Based on existing Illinois constitutional
provisions, statutas and court cases, there is no strong.

public policy for holding these offices incompatible. Aas
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noted above, the Sixth Illinois Constitutional Convention
gspecifically rejected a provision which would have made
them incompatible. In rejecting this provision it rejected
arguments that it would not be in the public interest for
the sawe person to hold a local office and memheréhip in

the General zssembly.

Very truly yours,

ATTORNEY GENERAL




